
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM MINUTES 

August 20, 2013 

 

 

APPROVED: 

3/18/14__jrl____________ 

 

AGENDA: 2014 CIP WORKSHOP – FIRE & POLICE DEPARTMENTS REVIEW 

 

ATTENDING: David Hill (Acting Chairman), John Bianchi, Joe Lukeman, Dan Paradis  

   

ABSENT: Murray Campbell (ill), Steve Favorite (FEMA), Don Milbrand (work) 

 

OTHER: Michael Capone (Town Administrator), Steve Yannuzzi (Fire Chief) 

 

 

Meeting opened at 7:00 p.m.  

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT:  Steve Yannuzzi 

Chief Yannuzzi brought complete historical maintenance records of all of his vehicles.  

He explained that a company from Virginia developed a system where the purchase 

versus maintenance, along with age and mileage, is looked at for the purchase of new 

replacements.  When maintenance gets to 60% of the original cost, it is deemed time. 

Chief Yannuzzi stated, for example, Engine 4 was purchased in 1990 at a cost of 

$168,000.  Maintenance costs to date are now $84,280., about 50%.  For the Virginia 

company, when at 50%, they have the privilege of placing this vehicle in reserve until it 

reaches 60%.  The Chief explained spikes for our Engine 4 which had an engine blow in 

the 14
th

 year and the transmission in the 15
th

 year. 

 

The Chief continued with the Ladder truck:  purchased in 2006 at a cost of $580,000.  It 

now has $13,000. of maintenance done (2.27%).  It will be paid off in 2015.  The 

Forestry truck was purchased in 2005 for $1.00 (it is a 1969 Jeep).  Due to the low 

purchase price, it is now way over in percentage as maintenance is over $6,000.   

 

A discussion followed as to how to present the replacement of Engine 4 as it has a 1-year 

lead time to be built.  The CIP committee has it scheduled for a 2016 replacement with a  

Capital Reserve started in 2013.  This did not happen.  Mr. Hill asked the cost now and 

the Chief answered that it is at least $500,000.  The committee then discussed how, by 

having a capital reserve account, if a Demo comes up, we have the opportunity to 

purchase it with the funds already saved which would be a cost savings.  A Demo comes 

with everything.  Mr. Lukeman noted that Londonderry saved $200,000. this way.  The 

problem is that we must have the funds available.  Chief Yannuzzi stated that you have to 

be careful of Demos as they may not fit in the station.  Mr. Capone noted that, in order to 

take advantage of these sales, we must have Capital Reserves or hold a Special Town 

Meeting.  

 



-2- 

CIP Minutes 

8/20/13 

 

FIRE DEPT. continued: 

Mr. Bianchi expressed that the Fire Dept. brought in $320,000 last year and he feels that 

we should be able to take something like $100,000 of it to set aside for future vehicle 

purchases.  Mr. Capone stated that this would have to be put before Town Meeting.  The 

Chief stated that Belmont does it this way.   

 

Mr. Paradis stated that members of the Budget Committee came to our last meeting and 

they would like information such as:  how many companies build fire trucks and the 

reasons why we do not purchase from particular ones.  Mr. Yannuzzi explained that they 

put the purchase out to bids.  This is not part of the Budget Committee’s purview.   

 

Mr. Hill suggested that we just try for a Demo for 2014.  Mr. Capone stated that a new 

purchase would be a 5-year lease on $500,000; he asked how a Demo would be funded.  

A discussion followed.  Mr. Bianchi stated that the Fire Dept. should be getting a vehicle 

every 8 years if we followed a schedule like the Police cruisers.  The problem now is that 

we need to replace Engine 4, a command truck and forestry truck.  Mr. Paradis stated that 

the problem that faces the CIP committee is how to purchase what is needed while setting 

aside funds to get the schedule going.  Mr. Hill mentioned that if a percentage of the Fire 

revenue is set aside in a revolving account, it will short the town revenue.  Should we try 

to do this for 2014?  Chief Yannuzzi stated that he would rather not put in Engine 4 

versus the salt/sand shed and/or a highway dump truck.   

 

Mr. Hill brought up the purchase of a 4-door pick-up (crew cab) which can also be used 

as a Forestry truck instead of having a Forestry truck just sitting for the few calls it 

services.  When asked, the Chief stated that the cost of the pick-up is $25,000 per the 

State purchase price.  Mr. Hill asked what the Forestry truck use is and was told that it 

must be able to go into the woods.   

 

Mr. Hill asked about the command truck and was told that it is a 2002 and they have been 

having rust problems.  It will be needed to be replaced in a year or two.  The State bid is 

$35,000 to $36,000. 

 

Mr. Bianchi stated that another problem is that there is not enough room in the station.  

Chief Yannuzzi added that a Space Needs report is needed for the whole town.  He 

doesn’t know what happened to the report done a few years back.  The Chief added that 

the Department Heads know that they need to coordinate all high budget items. 

Mr. Paradis stated that it is hard to get folks to understand long-range planning.  The 

Chief stated that he likes long-range planning but Bristol is living paycheck to paycheck.  

Mr. Hill stated that he tried to get them to save some of the Capital Reserve when the last 

vehicle was purchased but had no backing.  Chief Yannuzzi explained that if we hadn’t 

used all of the funds we had on hand, we would never have been able to purchase the 

needed ambulance. 



-3- 

CIP Minutes 

8/20/13 

 

FIRE continued: 

Chief Yannuzzi asked what the CIP committee considers high priority at this time.  Mr. 

Hill stated that the 6-wheeler for the Highway Dept. is overdue.  He feels that the 

Transfer Station remodel can be done over a period of years.  Mr. Paradis added that the 

sidewalk tractor could be leased and Mr. Lukeman added that it could be contracted out, 

as well.  Mr. Hill asked who is to do the research on the various equipment and was told 

that this is up to the Department Heads.  Mr. Paradis added that Belmont contracts their 

sidewalk plowing for $15,000.   

 

Mr. Hill mentioned the Space Needs of this building (Police and Town Office).  He 

added that he heard rumors that the office may go to the Medical building when Midstate 

Health moves to their new facility.   

 

Mr. Capone stated that it is the CIP committee’s objective to look at long-range.  They 

are to lay it out so as to even the bottom line.  At that point, the committee has to let it go 

and do it again the next year.  He realizes how frustrating that is for the committee which 

works so hard at this but some folks don’t see the need of an ambulance, for instance, 

until they need one.  Mr. Lukeman stated that the Selectmen and Budget committee 

members in attendance at our meeting asked for more information.  Mr. Bianchi added 

that, in order to level-fund, the cost has to go up some.  Mr. Capone feels that there is less 

resistance to Capital Reserve accounts or Revolving funds now.  The money is sitting 

there and, if a vehicle is still serviceable when the time comes for its’ new purchase, it 

can be delayed a year.  The Fire Chief was thanked for coming in to talk with the 

committee.  Mr. Capone explained that the Police Chief was not able to come tonight as 

he has had to take the midnight shift this week. 

 

OTHER DISCUSSION: 
Mr. Bianchi asked if an informal meeting can be held between the town and the CIP 

committee.  Mr. Capone answered that meetings are open and, even if one is held, it 

comes down to who votes at town meeting. 

 

Mr.  Hill asked about the building maintenance fund.  Mr. Capone stated that it is part of 

the operating budget.  Mr. Hill stated that the committee suggested a $20,000 reserve that 

would allow replacing up to that amount for any funds used during the year.  A 

discussion followed on budget expense line item #4901-770.  Mr. Capone explained that 

the DRA  no longer allows a Contingency fund so it has been placed in this line now.  If 

it was in the operating budget, any not used would have to be encumbered for a 

designated use or we would lose it.  He felt that we would need to establish a Building 

Maintenance Fund, with the Selectmen as the designated overseer, in a warrant article.  

 

 

 



-4- 

CIP Minutes 

8/20/13 

 

OTHER continued: 

Mr. Paradis expressed that the CIP report will be minimal this year.  Mr. Hill added that 

the two people who usually do the finish work are missing.  Mr. Lukeman felt that we 

should concentrate on the items not passed in 2013 and the committee agreed.  Mr. Hill 

stated that he will again do the written dialogue.  Chief Yannuzzi will get copies of the 

Fire Dept. equipment maintenance to the secretary so that the committee can present the 

history as it is needed.   

 

Mr. Hill asked how the cruiser is in the operating budget and not the CIP.  Mr. Paradis 

stated that we keep the history.  Mr. Capone added that the capital cost is under CIP but it 

is paid in the operating budget.   Mr. Hill stated that we shall need new numbers for the 

cruiser.  He mentioned that the Police building generator is to be in the Police budget.  

Mr. Yannuzzi stated that it should be in the Town budget.  The cost is $26,000 with a 

match of $13,000.  Mr. Capone stated that we have to appropriate the whole amount and 

then it reimburses from the grant. 

 

A discussion was held as to the Police Department addition.  Mr. Capone explained that 

the town office would be easier to move as the Police have established a lot of their needs 

here already.   

 

Mr. Hill questioned road paving and it was felt that we should leave that as is.  He then 

asked about sidewalks.  The committee felt that they should let the dust settle from the 

square project and then come up with a plan.  Mr. Capone mentioned that Round 5 of the 

Safe Routes to School grant has been approved and we may receive Round 6 which will 

continue with Union, Mayhew, the North Main St. continuation and School St. to Cedar.  

Round 7 is for Beech and High Streets.  We hope to do some of Lake St. this year and 

later to address Spring and Merrimac Streets. 

 

Mr. Hill stated that the 6-wheel dump was overlooked in 2013.  We will need new figures 

on this.  He asked about the sidewalk tractor and Mr. Paradis feels that it will not fly.  He 

feels that it is worth the money in the long run but would like to look at leasing this year.  

Mr. Hill asked who would do the subletting and Mr. Capone stated that they could.  Mr. 

Lukeman mentioned that, to justify, they would need the cost versus the cost to lease or 

sublet for 15 years (the shelf life of a new piece).  Mr. Paradis said that it would also need 

maintenance costs with the new purchase for the comparison. 

 

Mr. Hill feels that the Transfer Station remodel will not fly in one year.  Mr. Capone 

stated that the Coop. contract has been redone.  Part of what we signed on for gives a 

rebate and funds as part of the re-structuring with them.  We would like to establish a 

fund and use some of this for the remodel.  He has talked with Mr. Bucklin, Highway 

Supervisor and the Selectmen about this.  Mr. Lukeman stated that he will need the salt  

 



-5- 

CIP Minutes 

8/20/13 

 

OTHER continued: 

shed anyway.  Mr. Capone stated that the one that Mr. Bucklin is proposing will be 

moveable so as to fit in with the overall plan. 

 

Mr. Hill asked about the Vacuum truck and Mr. Lukeman feels that we can rent one 

cheaper.  It was determined to make this a priority 2.  Mr. Hill asked why both 550’s are 

due for purchase in 2015.  The secretary explained that Mr. Bucklin had held off on o9ne 

purchase and then the second one had problems and had to be purchased in the same 

year.  Mr. Lukeman added that Mr. Bucklin does a lot of his own maintenance in-house. 

Mr. Yannuzzi stated that labor costs would be lost in the maintenance history.  Mr. 

Lukeman thought it would be good to have a truck in reserve instead of trading it when a 

new one is purchased.  Mr. Capone stated that they only have 5 guys to plow plus one 

shared employee.  Mr. Yannuzzi stated that they run their Highway trucks to the ground 

so there is no value left.    

 

Mr. Capone stated that he will write up wording for the Town Building Maintenance 

Fund.  It was determined to leave $7500 for the Master Plan.  As to the Water Street 

Recreational path, it was felt this should be bumped back.  Mr. Capone expects that it 

will take 2-3 years at best case.  The Army Corps wants some additional drainage work to 

be done on Route 3A first.  They do support the project but the assessment cost is 

$40,000.  To defer this awhile will be fine.  He is looking for others to help support this 

project. 

 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 23, 2013:  

J. Lukeman made a motion, second by J. Bianchi, to approve the minutes as read.  The 

motion carried. 

 

REQUEST FORM:  The new request form that Mr. Lukeman presented was discussed. 

It was determined that #3 should be placed at the end of the form with an additional page 

available for explanation.  All will be renumbered accordingly.  Present #5 needs to be 

separated  with the “Need by Year” showing as “20__” and the “Estimated Life 

Expectancy” followed by “_________years”.  Present #6 to have $ Amount lines as is 

done in present #8. 

 

FINAL COMMENTS: 

With Engine 4, Mr. Bianchi stated that our insurance could go up as we are supposed to 

have 3 trucks.  We need to keep 2 running.  As to the Town Hall Space, Mr. Bianchi felt 

we should keep this in view and Mr. Lukeman wanted it left in. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS:  Mr. Hill took the Information on Trackless Vehicles to look 

over. 

 



-6- 

CIP Minutes 

8/20/13 

 

NEXT MEETING:  Our next meeting will be held August 27
th

 with the Highway and 

Police review. 

 

 

With no other business before the committee, D. Paradis made a motion, second by J. 

Bianchi, to adjourn at 9:35 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jan Laferriere, recording secretary  


